Brief History

Of the

1607 Air Transport Wing

The Military Air Transport Service (MATS) assumed jurisdiction of Dover AFB on 1 April 1952.  At this time, Congress appropriated $25 million to expand and transform Dover AFB into a supplemental East Coast port of embarkation for the  Military Air Transport Service and as a Foreign Clearing Base for ferrying flights headed to Europe and the Caribbean.

On 1 August 1953 four units of the Atlantic Division were organized at Dover: the 1607th Air Base Group, the 1607th Air Base Squadron, the 1607th Maintenance and Supply Squadron, and the 1607th Medical Group.  On 18 November 1953, the first two transport squadrons, the 1st Air Transport Squadron and the 21st Air Transport Squadron, flying Douglas C-54Gs, were assigned to the 1607th ABG and formed the nucleus for the 1607th Air Transport Wing. Finally, on 22 December 1953, the Secretary of the Air Force designated Dover AFB as a permanent military installation.

The initial transport mission of the newly activated Air Transport Group was accomplished when a C-54G operated by the 1st ATS delivered a 9,000 pound radio mast to Harmon Field, Newfoundland. On 1 May 1954, the first Douglas C-124C Globemaster II arrived at Dover and on 12 June 1954 the 45th ATS flew the first C-124 “heavy” transport mission, airlifting five engines to Harmon Field and a 12,000-pound spool of cable to Torbay, Newfoundland.

Dover AFB’s ability to perform heavy airlift enabled the base to accomplish some very specialized missions in the late 1950’s.  In May 1955, the base participated in Project Ice Cube, which supported the construction of the Defense Early Warning Network (DEWLINE) in Northern Canada.  In March 1956, 22,000 pounds of emergency polio equipment and vaccines were airlifted to Buenos Aires to help combat a polio outbreak and Operation Good Hope, the airlift of arms to Jordan, was supported in September 1957.  In December 1958, a Dover C-133 airlifted the heaviest load in the history of aviation when it carried 118,000 pounds of cargo to an altitude of 10,000 feet, breaking the former world record held by the Soviets. 

The mission responsibilities of the 1607th Air Transport Wing expanded considerably in the 1960’s as it assumed the responsibility for logistical airlift operations, unit deployments, scheduled and non scheduled airlift, and joint airborne operations.   Included in this vast array of taskings were the support of humanitarian operations to disaster-ridden parts of the world.  In May 1960, the Wing participated in the Amigo Airlift, 77 mercy missions to Chile when an earthquake literally remade parts of that country. The Great Alaskan Earthquake of March 1964 caused another airlift of supplies and emergency equipment, this time to Anchorage, Alaska, after an earthquake struck the state.  The 1607th also airlifted relief supplies into Honduras in the wake of Hurricane Hattie in November 1960; ferried supplies to Guadeloupe Island in August 1964 after Hurricane Cleo; and moved men and heavy equipment to the Rio Grande area of Texas after it was struck by Hurricane Beulah in June 1966.

January 1 1966 marked the newly established Military Airlift Command and with it the inactivation of  the 1607th Air Transport Wing.   During its twelve year history at Dover AFB, the 1607th ATW accumulated 1,076,483 transport flying hours or an approximate equivalent distance of 235 million nautical miles.  

Information Courtesy of the 434 Airlift Wing History Office


